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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . . I'd like to call to order the Council Budget and Finance
Committee Meeting on April the 4 th , 2011 at Helene Hall in Hana. Good evening, everyone.
AUDIENCE: Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for having us here this evening. At this time I'd like to yield the
floor to Councilmember Bob Carroll who will provide us with the introduction of the Members
that are here tonight. Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. And aloha everyone.
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AUDIENCE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I'm going to start right from my left down over here. We have Mike
White from Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Or actually Paia, Makawao. Gladys Baisa is the one actually from
Upcountry.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And Danny Mateo from our sister island of Molokai -AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --who is also our Council Chair. And our Council Vice-Chair and
Chair of the Budget Committee, Joe Pontanilla.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And from our other sister island, Island of Lanai, Riki Hokama.
AUDIENCE: . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And from Wailuku, we have Mike "Baseball Player" Victorino.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter and applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And all the way from Lahaina, which is about as far away you can
get from here, Elle Cochran.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And from Kihei, we have Don Couch.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Carroll. I'd like to introduce to you the people that is
supporting this Committee from our Council Staff. We do have Scott Kaneshina, Scott Jensen.
and Clarita Balala.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tonight it is your opportunity to present your comments on the Mayor's
Proposed Budget for the Fiscal Year 2012.
ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. ► ►-80)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just a few ground rules. If you have a cell phone, if you can turn it off or put
it on the silent mode, the Committee would appreciate that. For people that are providing
testimony you, you have three minutes to testify. Chair will allow you one minute to conclude.
When your name is called, please step forward to the mic. Please state your name, the
organization that you represent. Be sure to talk directly into the mic since we're recording the
proceedings here this evening. Upon completion of your testimony, if you could just stay for a
few moments. Some of the Members may have questions. If they don't then, you know, you're
concluded as far as providing your testimony.
So at this time, the Chair would like to call on the first person to provide public testimony. Rick
Rutiz, followed by John Hanchett.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. RUTIZ: Aloha. Thank you very much for coming out tonight and my name is Rick Rutiz. I'm
Executive Director of Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike and I work with our youth in Hana. Our youth...our
future is our youth and what I believe in is seeing that our youth has success so they can bring
this...they can nourish this success and one day 20 years, 30 years, 40 years from now, they are
going to be sitting where you're sitting right now. And we have a lot of very bright young men
and women who in our school system, and not knocking our school system, it's what it is, but
who find no successes. A school day for them is six hours of slapping across the face because
they are stupid in that system, but you take them out of that system and things change.
A quick little story. I had a kid in high school who failed basically every core class he had. The
teachers at the end of the year would give him a D to pass him along. As a builder in 10 th grade,
I go, James, okay, here's the plans, you go build this wall, do it like this, this, and that. Five
minutes later, the kid comes back to me. He goes, Uncle, what if I went like that, that, and this
instead, and myself, a 30-year contractor, scratched my head and go, oh, yeah, that's much
better. This is a kid who's failing as a senior in high school. He built a 900-square foot house
for his uncle...for his hanai uncle. These are...this is just an example of a lot of the kids we
have here and we need to give success to them to show them what they can do, how they can
help, and let them taste what kokua means.
In this program, we get the privilege of serving our kupuna in Hana and working with them and
building small cottages, building ramps, building solar hot water systems for the families who
don't have hot water, people who live off grid giving 'em energy systems, and the kids get it.
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They understand what they're doing. Yeah, they do get stipend for doing this, but at the same
time, they know what they're doing. They're helping their community and they're turning into
incredible young leaders for the future.
So I'm asking your continued support to support our program and to keep these kids believing in
themselves. I'd also like to say words of support for our other Hana nonprofits which keep this
place going because some -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. RUTIZ: --some of the things that go on on the other side on other islands don't quite make its way
here so we do need these help...this help. The Hana Film Festival is a great thing for our town.
The Youth Center...Keoki and John, they do incredible work. Hale Hulu Mamo, Hana Arts, the
Cultural Center, MEO, Ohana Makamae, and the Aging with Aloha people all bring so much to
our community. So I thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very...thank you very much for being here, Rick. It's always
good to see you and we really appreciate the work you do with the kids. You mentioned the
Aging with Aloha Coalition. Can you tell us how they interface with you?
MR. RUTIZ: With us, they, they help us on the...on the ramp projects that we do. They're able
to...between them and Hale Hulu Mamo and our public health nurse, they're able to alert us and
basically facilitate, give us names, and make the process go easier with our work with kupuna.
And they also are able from time to time turn us on to programs which help us fund these things.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's an ongoing process?
MR. RUTIZ: It's.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How many have you done this year?
MR. RUTIZ: Ramps?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. RUTIZ: We've done four ramps so far this year. I think in our ten years we have done 35 or so
like that. And the ramps in our program is Number One. Whatever we're doing, if we get a call,
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and someone needs a ramp, someone's broken a hip, someone's coming home from the hospital,
we drop everything and that ramp's put in.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's terrific. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. John Hanchett, followed by Sara Boeche.
MR. HANCHETT: Good evening. I'm a supporter of the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike program. They built an
attachment to my house for my wife and I — 20 by 16. It's been our...I have a three bedroom
home with small bedrooms. But now I got a 16 by 20 bedroom which is twice as big as the rest
of the house almost. But I wanted to support that program, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike in Hana and I
was hoping that the word would get out.
I have a daughter living in Keanae that wants to do something with Hana Ka Like [sic] to come
down and work some cottages in there. She wants to get into maybe some rentals and that's...I
hear that's not an easy field to get into today. She wants to talk to Rick and whoever the people
are that they should probably, probably you guys about wanting to develop a vacation rental or
something down there. But so far she hasn't been moving or doing anything with that.
But my wife and I, when they were building our cottage, I just wanted to paint a picture of these
kids that are doing the work. Everyday we'd see 12 to 14 kids show up for work. I guess the
younger ones do a half day and then maybe by law they can't go any later or longer in the day.
And the older ones get to stay there and finish the project. So when they come my wife and I
watch the work that's going on and I have family, kids that are working on the project with them,
too, but we would make lunch for them — feed them every day while they were there. And I
thought we had a good side of the coin, you know, they worked so hard and let me tell you, we
sat there and watched them eat. I mean, they can eat! . . . (laughter). . . There were three or four
boys they can eat, no names, but they can eat and they deserve it, you know, they deserve it. So
we really cooked up a storm for them.
But I want to be able to support that program forwarded to me through the Hana Senior Center
and thank you for them getting the word out so that we could get...approach Rick and get some
work done at our home. I hope that others...I think there's a few others in Hana that have
benefited in the same way that I did by having Rick and his crew working over there for them. I
have a ramp. Rick put that one in. My wife's mother who the reason why we put it in with the
bars around the bathroom and she passed. But I'm getting on so, you know, I may be able to use
that ramp and I may be able to use all those bars. So we're gonna leave 'em right where they
are. But again, that was Rick...that was the group that came in and helped us. So that's what I
wanted to do just offer some support for Hana — Ma Ka liana Ka Ike.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for testifier, yeah? Seeing none, thank
you again. Sara Boeche, followed by Kelly Hill.
MS. BOECHE: First of all, aloha family.
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AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MS. BOECHE: Hi. Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for being here. My name is Sara Boeche and
I'm the President of the Hana Lani Senior Citizens Club. Your presence here has been long
overdue and we certainly appreciate your presence and also your presence in our well-being for
the community. Hana Lani Senior Center has approximately 56 plus members and we'd like to
express our appreciation for the many services that MEO has provided, Monday through Fridays,
five days a week, rain or shine. I look forward to this service because our health is deteriorating
and we do depend on the services of MEO. And let me tell you now that hopefully others,
kupunas, will hear about this service that MEO provides and perhaps they will find the use of
this transportation service because now even the gas prices are going up and here in Hana you're
paying over $5 for a gallon of gas, whereas in town it's, it's just a dollar less. But still yet, you
know, the...what I'm here to say is the MEO service is a big help in providing us with what we
need and as long as this service is available...like I say a lot of the kupunas, and it's not really
only the kupunas, but a lot of people will take advantage of this service. It's a long day to travel
and it would help tremendously.
Also, last week because of the winds that we had here in this East Maui area, there was one
incident where a tree fell over the road and the Hana School bus was transporting the kids who
live in Keanae back to Keanae and the MEO bus was coming back to Hana. Because the tree
had fallen and there was no immediate clearing of the road, MEO driver and the school bus
driver, had to switch passengers just to get, you know, everyone back to where they were
supposed to be. So emergencies like this and, and anything that helps to enhance, you know, our
reason to be living on this side of the island, it certainly will help. It certainly will help, you
know, the purpose.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. BOECHE: I am...so I am here today just to say that your support to us is greatly needed and we
also would like to do more if more could be given to us. Thank you very much for being here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BOECHE: And a safe and pleasant trip home.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Kelly Hill, followed by JoLoyce Kaai [sic].
MS. HILL: I've never done this before. Thank you so much for coming today and listening to
everyone. Thank you so much for coming today. I am Kelly Hill and I'm Vice-President of the
Hana Lani Senior Club and I'm coming on behalf of the MEO services that is provided for our
club that Sara just mentioned a few things. I'd like to reiterate about the importance of the MEO
service that they provide to take our kupunas to doctor's appointments, shopping, and also
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functions. And it is important that we continue this service to further their health and their
well-being. I'd like all of the club members to stand 'cause quite a few of 'em are here today. If
you could please stand, that would be great. Okay. . . . (applause). . . Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it? Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
JoLoyce Kaai [sic].
MS. KAIA: Kaia.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kaia, followed by Timmy Satot.
MS. KAIA: Aloha. Excuse my back. . . . (speaking to audience). . . Thank you so much for coming. I
see a few familiar faces here. My name is JoLoyce Kaia and I...because I am a resident of Hana
I am able to take advantage of some of the things that are offered here for us in Hana that you
provide. One of 'em is...I rode here on the MEO bus this evening and the other one is, of
course, you can see I'm a member of the Hana Lani Senior Club, and I also take advantage of
Hale Hulu Mamo. I go for lomilomi and acupuncture and I feel that it keeps me going. Probably
if I couldn't go there and do that, would be a lot harder.
I'm here tonight to testify for the Hana Soil and Water Conservation District. I'm sure that a lot
of you are familiar with Wes Nohara who is our President for the Hawaii Association of
Conservation Districts. I actually am Vice-President for Maui and I also sit on the Tri-Isle
Resource and Conservation Development Board.
I was asked to testify and I have a long list of things that we benefit the County of Maui by our
volunteer work and also the money that we bring in. So what I'm going to do is send an e-mail
to Dawn Lono and she promised me that she would send that to all of you so you could be
refreshed. I'm sure you've heard it before of what benefits that the Conservation Districts do for
Maui. And I want to thank you for your support.
We have a wonderful, young woman by the name of Maggie Kramp who is the secretary for all
our districts and you have been supporting us by having a grant for her. Otherwise, we probably
couldn't do anything. So we really, really appreciate it and that's it. Thank you so much. Is
there any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. KAIA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Timmy Satot, followed by Sheila Agnitsch.
MR. SATOT: Good evening. I'm Timmy Satot. I'm the Outreach Program Coordinator for --
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Push it up. There you go.
MR. SATOT: --oh, okay . . . (adjusts mic). . for Hale Hulu Mamo, a program which is part of Maui
Adult Daycare Centers. I've been asked to read a letter from one of our seniors. His name is
William H. Chang and you should be getting a handwritten copy of his letter. Okay.
Dear Committee Members, I am submitting this letter in testimony for the support of Hale Hulu
Mamo. As a senior and former caregiver, I've had the privilege of receiving the services of this
much needed agency in our isolated community. I encourage you to be supportive to the greatest
extent possible. As a matter of fact, I would encourage the Council to look ahead in its
deliberations to the study...steady increase of support to organizations of this nature serving the
kupuna that...population that is growing rapidly and will be needing to accommodate with these
kinds of services soon. Me ke aloha pumehana, William H. Chang.
I also would like to testify on my own behalf. That although I do work at Hale Hulu Mamo, I am
also a caregiver for my grandmother, and through the Hale Hulu Mamo Program of Maui Adult
Daycare Centers, the Maui County Office on Aging provides information and referral assistance
for...about kupuna care services available for seniors and their caregivers in Hana, as well as
throughout Maui County. My grandmother has benefited from programs and services provided
at Hale Hulu Mamo such as lomilomi, acupuncture, and car wash. My grandma also received
free shoes through a program at the Hana Youth Center. My grandma also benefited from the
Hana/Wailuku shuttling services as provided through MEO. And there were other kupuna who
are similar in receiving those kinds of benefits through the agencies here in Hana. For myself, I
benefited as a caregiver from the Maui County Office on Aging Caregiver Support Group
meetings and workshops as provided through Hale Hulu Mamo. Recently, I attended a Maui
County Office on Aging Chronic Disease Self-Management Workshop, and I am grateful for
Hale Pomaikai Hana Dialysis Home for providing a quiet and relaxing setting for the workshop,
and hope you will be available for future classes and similar meetings.
As you probably know that a lot of people that will be testifying today, here in Hana because
we're an isolated community, we've had to rely on one another and collaborate with one another.
And as was mentioned before with Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, with the Youth Center, with Ohana
Makamae, and with Hale Hulu Mamo, that we've been able to work with all different agencies
and try to...try to meet the needs of the seniors as well as the youth, the children, and, and
families in general in Hana. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MR. SATOT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sheila, followed by Shannon Lind. Sheila, if you can talk directly into the
microphone so everyone can hear.
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MS. AGNITSCH: Directly into the mic.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There you go!
MS. AGNITSCH: Alright! Well, first of all, aloha to my kupuna, excuse my back, and friends and
family of Hana, and aloha to all of you. Welcome. I'm Sheila Agnitsch. I'm the Senior Center
Director at Hale Hulu Mamo. Our mission, Hale Hulu Mamo provides a safe and nurturing
haven for the precious kupuna of Hana to meet their social, creative, cultural, and physical needs.
We provide respite. That's our main thing — to be able to be there to serve the families of Hana.
We also have programs. You've heard of some of `em thus far. We have tai chi, aquasize,
lomilomi, acupuncture, crafts, and our newest program is Mai E Ai, which is a program with
Hana Health. It's a kupuna congregate meals program. We also have...provide services for our
kupuna — Legal Aid, caregiver workshops, support group meetings, car wash, haircuts, and also
information and referral assistance.
One of our pride and joys is our Hana Hospice and that we provide to the community of Hana.
What it is is we work with Hospice Maui and we provide hospital beds, walkers, wheelchairs,
adult pampers, whatever they stand in need of. We also have at Maui Hospice, an oxygen
concentrator that is specifically for Hana. So we'll get a phone call from someone who is in
need of hospice care in Hana and then the family will come to us and we provide what we have.
We even provide meals if we have to.
Also, we collaborate, partner in all our fundraising efforts, and our number one team players is
Hana Youth Center. You know, not only are they there to protect, teach, and learn from our
youth, which are our future, we work together to raise funds.
Ohana Makamae, we work together and just wanted to announce that tomorrow will be three
years since our Hale Kuokoa opened, our Hana Sober Living House. So we want to thank you
folks for all your continued support to Ohana Makamae. We are so blessed by this Sober Living
House and up until last month it was full house so, yes!
And also we have our Maui Fest. We fund raise with Kenny here. We heard that you...the
Mayor cut the funding for that program and it not only benefits us in Hana, our agencies, but it
also benefits Molokai and Lanai. So we hope that you folks can put in a good word to the Mayor
about the Film Fest. It's a wonderful event here in Hana and how we benefit is we get to
fundraise. We sell dinner plates and we sell the food, and Kenny brings the people. He brings
the wonderful films that are very cultural and also we have entertainers from all over the world.
So it's a wonderful event. I hope it doesn't get stopped.
And transportation field trips — MEO — number one.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MS. AGNITSCH: I don't...I, myself, don't drive so I rely a lot on MEO, along with my mom, and so
many of us. They provide our transportation at Hale Hulu Mamo, to and from, and we work
together. When they cannot pick up from the Dialysis Home, we do. And like Aunty
mentioned, gas in Hana is 5.74 for a gallon and it keeps going up. So I want to end with all the
agencies at Hale Hulu Mamo and myself support — Hale Pomaikai, Hana Dialysis Home, Maui
County Office on Aging, Kaunoa, Hana Cultural Center, Hana Arts, Hana Canoe Club, Ma Ka
Hana Ka Ike, Paani Mai Park, MISC. All these agencies protect and take care of our people, our
place, and our spirits. So mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
MS. AGNITSCH: No? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Shannon Lind. Shannon Lind, followed by Layne Suzuki.
MS. LIND: Hi. Aloha, County Council Members. Thank you for coming out this evening. I am the
Hale Hulu Mamo Senior Center Assistant and I am reading a letter on behalf of one of our
kupunas.
To the Maui County Budget Meeting. It has been my good fortune to have received some of the
services which are offered at Hale Hulu Mamo. There are many positive things I can say about
Hale Hulu Mamo. To begin with, the staff is fantastic — Sheila, Shannon, and Timmy are so
friendly and sincerely caring individuals. They greet you with a smile and are always ready to
help you in any way we can.
The programs which they have available to the seniors are varied and appropriate for their
clients. The services which I have taken advantage of saves me time, energy, and money. Some
of the services offered are arts and crafts, haircuts, aquasize at the hotel swimming pool,
manicures, pedicures, meals on wheels, field trips, workshops on various matters on aging, and
transportation to town for shopping, business, or medical appointments. The seniors who go to
Hale Hulu Mamo during the week are provided with transportation to and from their homes.
The atmosphere at Hale Hulu Mamo Senior Center is homey and inviting. It offers people a
chance to socialize with others instead of being at home alone. They can watch news, movies,
and sports on television, listen to music, and have friendly conversations. They are also given
the option of showering before they leave to go home.
The staff also decorates the Center for the various holidays during the year. They make special
decorations for Valentine's Day, Easter, Christmas, and birthdays. Hale Hulu Mamo is certainly
the senior's home away from home.
The Senior Center is as unique as Hana and it will be a great loss if it were to close because of
lack of funding. The monies granted from the County make all of the above-mentioned possible.
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Please keep this in mind when you are reviewing your Budget. Mahalo for your generosity and
continued support of Hale Hulu Mamo. Patricia Eason.
So I'd also like to speak on behalf of Ohana Makamae, Hana Youth Center, Hale Pomaikai, Ma
Ka Hana Ka Ike, Hana Arts, Hana Cultural Center. And here in Hana it's such a unique and
special place. It's really a place where youth, kupunas, and also middle-aged ohana can really
get together and collaborate and, and really take care of one another. So it's a really special
place here in Hana and we just ask for your continuous support, and you know, helping meet the
needs of the community of Hana. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Layne Suzuki, followed by Christabul [sic] Travis.
MR. SUZUKI: Hello, my name is Layne Suzuki. I'm the Executive Director for Ohana Makamae and
I've been there since January 7` 11 of this year. And for us there's been...this year has been
difficult for us. We've been through a lot of changes in Ohana Makamae. At times, we had
fundings...funds had been limited and we had no cash for over nine months due to missed
reporting deadlines and physical issues which has been resolved. It's almost like Christmas
when all the funds start coming in at one time, but unfortunately, it was not soon enough 'cause
in December we had to shut down one of our programs, Keiki Makamae, which is a program for
women... substance abuse program for women of child bearing age.
However, we made it through, you know. We made it through with the dedication of my staff
and the people of Hana and all the nonprofits that supported us like Hale Hulu Mamo. We do
fundraisers with them through like the Hana Youth Center, the Kipahulu Ohana where we do all
cultural events with them, the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, and of course, the Maui Fest. We are
partners with them and I kind of sad to see it go because we actually had to write the grants to
get that, you know, and it was a good thing for the community because it brought in commerce
and it brought in new people to experience the spiritual nature of Hana, you know.
And for me, collaboration, partnerships, integration of services is the only way a small nonprofit
can function and thrive in these hard economic times, you know. And you know, for us at Ohana
Makamae--I all nervous up here--but we are still the only providers of substance abuse
prevention treatment service in East Maui and with the County funds we will be able to continue
our service for another year. I'm grateful for that and the community probably happy about that
too. And furthermore, we acquired County funds for our Keiki Makamae program, and
hopefully, we won't have to shut their program down again. And thanks for the support of the
community, thank you for the support of the Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Christabul [sic] Travis — I hope I pronounced your first name right.
MS. TRAVIS: Christabel Medeiros Travis from Hana and I want to thank all of you for coming all the
way over here to listen us say the same thing over and over again. It takes patience, but I thank
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you for coming. I thank the people of Hana here for showing up for whatever reason you came
for — to listen and applaud your favorite charity or whatever you trying to get money from. So
loosen up your pockets there! . . . (laughter). . . Okay.
I'm a member of the Hana Lani--I'm not going to say Senior because only some of us are
seniors, I call it the Hana Lani Citizens Club--for three years now. We lucky enough to be
funded by the County and the best, and hope that they feel generous this year, and be part of the
MEO organization. Our representative is Agnes Groff, and she takes care of us. And our
Representative here is Bob Carroll and I know he's going to fight for us too because he belongs
to our Club and so does his wife. . . . (laughter). . . Was that conflict of interest? I don't know.
Anyway, I believe that MEO really tries to carry out their mission by helping the elderly in every
way they can, healthwise, financially-wise, emotional, recreational, and we get to take advantage
of that here in Hana. They support us by providing us with transportation to excursions which
some of the senior citizens probably have...would never experience or have never. Like, for
instance, last year we went to Ulalena for $21. I mean who can beat that? It was a wonderful
experience, and I'm sure most of the seniors here would have never gone all the way over there,
but thanks to MEO we all went and we had a wonderful time. There's other, other excursions
coming up that we will be able to enjoy if we have money.
The transportation is really vital here in Hana because we have no bus service. Like they say,
some have no cars. The kupunas, you know, after a while they can't drive or they don't have a
car. So by having the bus take them over it relieves them of worrying about how they going to
get to a doctor, how you're going to shop for food, you know, all of that stress is taken away.
The MEO drivers are wonderful — Johnny and Karen and Aloha. They don't ever get mad at you
if you said I want to go here, then there, then back again. Of course, the bus kind of kills my
neck, but that's okay. They also...let me see, my notes are all kine kajenga [sic], yeah. Anyway,
it's a wonderful organization and it provides a social and other things that the kupunas here in
Hana don't, don't have a chance to.
Another organization that I frequent is the Hale Hulu. My husband and I go up there for
massages and acupuncture which really helps when you have aches and pains. They also offer
like they said, they bring people over, lawyers, and all health people, give you flu shots, and they
give you food if you want to, they entertain you culturally. They all do all kinds of wonderful
things and -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. TRAVIS: --they're very important to, to the town for exercise, socially, and everything else.
Sheila, Shannon, Tim, Peter, Laura, Lamuel [sic], Echo, Pat, Colette, they all do great. They
have free haircuts. You want a free haircut, they give you a haircut too. No guarantees it's your
style, but you get a haircut. . . . (laughter). . . So they are...they're a good organization, too.
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Hale [sic] Makamae — they were wonderful. I mean, you know, we have a drug problem here
just like everywhere else. They've helped some of my relatives. I'm sure they've helped some
of...and the drug problem here affects everybody, right, through one way or the other. If you not
related, there's somebody married in your family, and that so we all have to try to do everything
we can to get it out of Hana because we don't really need that. So if you support that
organization, that's good because...then the other thing for the kids is.. .
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you conclude, please.
MS. TRAVIS: Oh, the Paani Mai Park, the children here have nothing to do. I mean they have...they
have the Youth Center and Keoki is wonderful. He not only provides them with support, but he
also tries to create morals in them and different things like that. I feel that if the kids are
occupied sports-wise or recreational-wise, they won't be on the streets and getting in trouble and
maybe we can keep 'em off of drugs longer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. TRAVIS: Is my time up? . . . (laughter)..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. TRAVIS: Can I use somebody's...okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Like one minute ago. . . . (laughter).. .
MS. TRAVIS: Okay. About my.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry, I gotta cut you off right now because the rule is three minutes and one
minute to conclude so you got four minutes and if I have everybody start talking five -MS. TRAVIS: I know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --six minutes.. .
MS. TRAVIS: Okay. I cut myself and I just support all the other good organizations in Hana.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Moana [sic] Oliveira, Moana [sic] Oliveira, followed by
Kumu Kamalu Kahookele.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Aloha, County Council Members. My name is Mona Oliveira. I'm a substance abuse
counselor and I work for Ohana Makamae Resource Center. I am here in support of Ohana
Makamae because I was once a former client of their drug and alcohol treatment and their Keiki
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Makamae Program. Ohana Makamae staff helped me to deal with my drug addiction and helped
my family and I get our life back together. Being in a small, isolated community like Hana, I
was fortunate to receive the services and support I needed to maintain my sobriety. It has been
11 years since I came into the rooms of recovery and with the help of Ohana Makamae, I now
work with the youth in Hana School as a substance abuse counselor working with 13 to 17 year
old adolescents who are at risk of drug and alcohol addiction.
Ohana Makamae offers programs such as substance abuse counseling, treatment and education,
parenting education, individual and family counseling, and we also have a Sober Living House
for men. We also offer drop-in services like assisting with TRO and DHS applications. We
have use of laundry facilities and office equipment. We do supervised visits, drug testing, and
assist with referrals for domestic violence.
In the past two years, our organization has gone through changes in staffing and administration.
Despite these changes, we have managed to keep our IOP school-based and sober living
programs in operation and our Keiki Makamae program will be starting again soon. It is through
your continued support over the past years that we have been able to be of service to the families
of East Maui.
I would like to thank the Maui County Council Members for all your support and ask that you
continue to support our organization. I also ask your support for our partner organizations in
Hana — Hale Hulu Mamo Senior Center, Hana Youth Center, Kahanu Gardens, Kipahulu Ohana,
Hale Pomaikai, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, and the Hana Film Fest. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Kumu Kamalu Kahookele.
MS. KAHOOKELE: . . . (Spoke in Hawaiian). . . Aloha.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MS. KAHOOKELE: I would like to say much aloha to the Council Members and Chairman Pontanilla
for being here in Hana to represent the East Side of Maui. My name is Kumu Kamalu
Kahookele and I am a local born Nahikuan [sic] and of course I'm proud to say your Councilman
that's sitting there is my classmate and he graduated with me in the Class of '61. Any Class of
`61's in here? Come on Ulu, stand up. . . . (laughter). . Okay.
The first kuleana that I would like to speak about is the roadway paving...repaving, I should say,
and patching of a lot of potholes going down the Lower Nahiku Road. Secondly, we have been
inquiring about speed bumps for the safety of pedestrian...pedestrians that walk up and down the
road, even in the middle of the night, and also speeding vehicles that have no respect for
dangerous turns up ahead or below. The third thing I would like to bring to the Council is the
water supply. Somehow our pipes down Lower Nahiku at a specific area always break and I
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don't think this Driscoll [sic] or Bluebell is doing the job. I think what they need to do is to get
duck tile. That hasn't been done with...done yet.
And also another inconvenience I feel is really important to bring to all of your attention is I
believe the Water Department should place some emergency backhoe or dump trucks in Hana.
Because whenever we have a water breakage, they come out from Kahului and that costs money.
First of all, they would need a lowboy to bring the backhoe in and then the time consuming is
unreal and then they take it back up to Makapipi Road, load up the backhoe, and take it all the
way back to Kahului. So I ask you, are we spending money foolishly? Yes.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. KAHOOKELE: And also to include the Lower Nahiku wooden bridge, which is the only wooden
bridge left on the Island of Maui on the East Side I will speak for only. They have been
repairing it. We have been lucky enough to have temporary repair. Now, you can fix a wooden
bridge, I think, and come with half plank, nail `ern in the middle of the bridge and continue on
with the other half I don't think that's pono. I think that's kapulu. And if they...I mean it's
always a money issue, right? But I think there are more than one way that we can skin the cat
and get it done properly 'cause we have numerous vehicles that go up and down that road, seven
days a week to get to the landing to the beach area.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. KAHOOKELE: How many more minutes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You have 30 seconds to finish.
MS. KAHOOKELE: Oh, my Lord Jesus! And also I would like to ask, you know, to support the
kupuna meals on wheels, the public transportation in the Lower Nahiku area thanks to the MEO,
and of course, all those that require that assistance and--thirty seconds, huh?--and also I'm going
to ask for street lights, possibility, and we are in need of very important usage for speed bumps.
I thank you very much for your consideration and accepting our testimony from the Nahiku
Community Association. And for the record, I know during these economic times funding and
staffing is scarce and also hard to stretch to cover areas from Huelo to Kaupo, but asking for
your support at large in the area of East Maui. Mahalo nui loa kakou.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. KAHOOKELE: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifies? You know, if you have, you know,
a written testimony, we'll take it so that, you know, all of the information that you trying to
provide us, you know, every Member of the Committee will have a copy.
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MS. KAHOOKELE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So if you're gonna go over four minutes, you know, I would appreciate that
you turn in your testimony so that we can make copies.
MS. KAHOOKELE: Mahalo. You will all get copies and also the newsletter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. KAHOOKELE: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next testifier is Greg Braymen, followed by Corinna Kekahuna.
MR. BRAYMEN: I'm Greg Braymen. Fm not a senior yet so I am here to remind you that other
people other than the kupuna need your help in funding. I take the MEO bus. I was in a car
accident two and a half years ago and was disabled. During that car accident, I spent a year in
bed atrophying. I was saved by Hui No Ke Ola Pono, which is an organization here on Maui, a
Hawaiian health organization, that is now with their funding up in the air and not knowing if
they're still going to be around. They literally saved my life or I would still be in bed or maybe
dead by now. Hui No Ke Ola Pono provided me with massage, aqua therapy, chiropracty, and
other forms of health to get me back on my feet again to where I'm able to stand in front of you.
I would ask that you please consider funding or continuing to fund Hui No Ke Ola Pono.
I also am in need of the MEO bus, which I use, and I'm not a senior. Other people use the MEO
bus as young as I've seen, 19, 18 years old. We use it to go to town and back, but there isn't,
except for the seniors, availability here in town to be able to go to the post office or do shopping
here in town. And I would ask if you would consider in your funding a consideration for other
than just the kupuna for other disabled veterans like myself or other disabled people or whoever
might need that service here in town that do not have a vehicle, to be able to go to the post office,
check their mail, and be able to go shopping. Maybe...when I was on the other side, it was
provided for us on the other side in Kahului. If we could have even just one day a week where
people who need a local ride here in town could be provided that, that would be a big help. But
right now I am dependent on MEO to make it to my doctors' appointments in town, to get to the
airport when I have to go to Tripler or for my other VA needs. I am dependent on MEO
extremely and without it, I don't know where I would be. It's very important. Even to expand
the program, not just keep it as is.
I'm also in support of the Maui Arts...Film Festival which lost their funding and I would ask that
you would consider bringing it back. We don't even have films over here anymore. Our film
place...theatre that we used to have our films in is now Hasegawa General Store. So that's how
we would get our films.
I also ask if you would consider additional funding for Helena [sic] Center, this Center here.
They increased the cost of the Center and this place used to be filled every weekend with events.
-17-
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Now it's empty almost constantly. The maintenance here is in need of a boost, to put it lightly.
Even the clock is off. They can't reset a clock. They can't clean the windows. I had to clean the
chairs for the event we had on Friday night. The building needs maintenance and it's not getting
it. And we, we...they've increased the cost of the Center which has decreased the use of the
Center and if you could consider maybe lowering the cost back so it could be used more and
assigning some kind of maintenance person to the Helena [sic] Center. That would be awesome.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BRAYMEN: Okay. Thank you very much for your consideration. I would like to remind you it's
not just the kupuna of Hana that need your help. It's also other peoples like our veterans and like
our younger people, who come here as woofers to take care of our agriculture who do not have
vehicles, who are here for six months, three months, or as long as they are, and they are also in
need of transportation. And it would be awesome if we could have a ride to go to the post office
and not be sitting on the road with our thumb out for an hour or two hours trying to get
somewhere. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Excuse me, can you
come back?
MR. BRAYMEN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi. Thank you, Mr. Braymen. And I just wanted, not a question,
but just a comment. I'm a strong supporter of Hui No Ke Ola Pono -MR. BRAYMEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and just so you know, it's a State-funded program.
MR. BRAYMEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so right now I went to their annual board member meeting and
they're in dire need of support and testimonies to be sent to the State level to continue their
funding. So thank you.
MR. BRAYMEN: Well, if you as Council Members could also provide support on behalf of Maui
County, that would be awesome. Because I can tell you I might not still be alive today if it
wasn't for that organization. After my car accident and your measly $10,000 you're given for
your car insurance, every single medical provider dropped like a hot potato the minute that
10,000 was gone and that only lasted a couple of months and then I was on my own. And if it
wasn't for Hui No Ke Ola Pono providing me with healthcare, I don't know where I'd be today.
Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BRAYMEN: Please help support on the Maui County level for the State to fund that organization.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Corinna Kekahuna, followed by Joyce Mitchell [sic].
MS. KEKAHUNA: Good evening, everybody. I am the Treasurer for the Nahiku Community
Association. I've been on board for four years. Thank God I'm getting out next year. It has
been rough. I'm not, you know what, I'm going to really going to save the time, especially due
to all the overages. I just want the County Council to keep on supporting all of the organizations
here in Hana because they do benefit Lower Nahiku, where I'm from, in so many ways also.
With the MEO services, our kupunas use it down there also. We ask for the support for that. As
far as our road issues, Water Department issues, as far as taking care of our aging pipelines down
there, we just had it broken like not even three weeks ago and this is ongoing for the last four
years that I've been back home. It breaks almost every month. So I really, really I like...the
newspaper article that was, you know, prove it, show it, you want it, get some action going. So I
thought that was real good of you guys to stand up and tell the Water Department, you know,
we're giving you guys this money, take care of this business, show us what you guys need, you
know, what we need in here also, you know.
Our bridges, our guardrails, and Bob knows about it, and I would also like to thank Dawn Lono
for coming to our meetings and supporting us in going through the process of following the steps
and working with all the departments involved, be it the Department of Transportation, the
County, Alan's office, everything. She has been helping and working with us and we appreciate
it, Bob. So please, just keep it in mind and whatever information you guys need to be forwarded
`cause I know you have it, pictures, and whatever you guys need, we'll give it to you guys just so
you guys can see that we need the support as a community, as a general community, as well as
the small ahupuaas that surround Hana itself Because keep in mind it's Huelo to Kaupo. Okay.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. KEKAHUNA: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Joyce Mitchell-Mynar, followed by Stacy Lynch.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: Aloha, County Members. I'm here...I'm Joyce Mitchell-Mynar and I'm
here to represent Hana Arts. I'm one of their directors for the theatre program when we can.
This last December we had a production of the Little Women — The Musical". It had been three
years since our last production. I know we lost our funds from the County last year and we were
already in the beginning of the production and through donations and out-of-pocket we were able
-
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to put it on and it was a success with the help of the community. And so I'm here to ask you to
revisit supporting Hana Arts for the following years.
I also have a letter from Robin Riley Rayner, who's in England, but she's the President of Hana
Arts to read to you and she wishes she could be here. I did submit one so you can have one later
in case I get cut off. I would also, before I start the letter, if I get cut off, I'd like to support all
our nonprofits, especially Hale Hulu Mamo. This past year I've had to put my mom into Pohai
Nani on Oahu and a week ago my sister-in-law into a homecare facility after getting a stroke and
Alzheimer's so what they do is fantastic and any way you can support them, please do.
Okay, let's see if I can read this. Dear Council Members, my apologies for being unable to
present this in person. I am at present half a world away but my heart and energy is here with
you today.
Hana is very fortunate that we have a number of dedicated individuals operating excellent
nonprofit organizations like Hale Hulu Mamo, Hana Youth Center, Hana Cultural Center, and
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike which provide necessary services to our community at a fraction of the cost
possible through the County.
My particular passion, however, is in the arts. It has been a very difficult year for Hana Arts.
Last year, through our failure to complete our audit in a timely manner, we lost our County grant,
a grant that covered Hana Arts administrative cost for nearly a decade. The completed
application is on file today and at the County offices, but was too late to be effective.
Unwilling to allow our community programs to perish, a number of our volunteers including
myself have through dedication and hard work, kept Hana Arts alive because we believed that
even isolated, rural, and forgotten communities like Hana need artistic enrichment.
As the only sponsor...one of the only sponsors of arts activity in Hana/East Maui, Hana Arts is
now celebrating its 20 1 " year of serving our community. It offers four basic programs — teaching,
art, drama, and music to enhance our children's education within the Hana School through our
Creative Friday School Program classes at our Art Barn to promote life-long learning, theatrical
performances, like our highly acclaimed - Little Women" show, where local children and adults
can learn drama skills and certain...and entertain our community at the same time and
Traditional and International Art and Cultural events and workshops open to the public.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: If it were not for Hana Arts, these kinds of programs would not be
available to our community or our children. But why, in these difficult financial times, should
we bother with art education? Years of research show that exposure to the arts is closely linked
to academic achievement, social and emotional development, civic engagement, and equitable
opportunity. Art training can improve math and reading skills, cognitive ability, critical
thinking, and verbal skill. It can also improve motivation, concentration, confidence, and
-20-
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teamwork. I personally witnessed academically challenged children find success in the arts
which has given them self-confidence and enabled them to re-engage and improve their
academic standing.
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: And you can read the rest of this and I concur with that because I've seen
that for myself, a student who couldn't even speak and now is majoring in the musical arts in
college. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Excuse me? Member
Baisa. Question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Quick question. The audit issue you mentioned, has that been resolved?
Has the audit been done and is it okay?
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: I...you know, I can't, I can't comment on that. I'm not...it's not in my
knowledge. But I believe that it has been done up at...it has been submitted but I don't know all
the particulars.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: I'm sorry I can't answer that. I'm just reading her.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because you know it is a grant requirement so if it isn't cleared up, it
needs to be.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. MITCHELL-MYNAR: I will relay that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Stacy Lynch, followed by Claudia Kalaola.
MS. LYNCH: Thank you all for coming out once again, most of you. My name is Stacy Lynch and I sit
on the board of Ohana Makamae. I'd like to thank you for your continuous support of Ohana
Makamae throughout the years starting back when I remember you looked outside the box with
Ray Henderson and figured out how we could get our 501(c). Because of that Ohana Makamae
has been able to help the Hana community and also the other nonprofits that we collaborate with.
It's very vital. Ohana Makamae and I thank you for remembering this throughout the years of
how important our services are to the community.
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I'd like you also to please continue to support the Youth Center, the Senior Center, the building
and trades program, MEO, and the Hana Film Fest. And thank you once again for everything
you do for Hana and Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you again.
Claudia Kalaola, followed by Joe Modica.
MS. KALAOLA: Aloha mai kakou. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MS. KALAOLA: I'm here in behalf of an all volunteer 501(c)(3) nonprofit group called Na Mamo 0
Muolea. In Mayor Arakawa's previous administration we were able to save 75...78 acres of part
of the Muolea ahupuaa which is out towards Kipahulu. With the County and with the group
from our community and with the help of Trust for Public Lands, NOAA, and OHA we were
able to buy that land from the landowners so now the County owns that land. Part of the
situation with that was that this land would be brought...the management of the land would be
brought back to Hana. And so we formed our nonprofit group six years ago...five years ago and
in 2007 we submitted an application for a lease and we have not heard anything. Well, not that
we haven't heard anything, but it hasn't really gone anywhere and I think that...I think at this
point it might be an administrative thing, but it's always good to have the support of the Council.
So that's why I'm here tonight just to make everyone aware.
I don't have enough for everyone but I did print out who we are. We malama our historic and
cultural sites, native and Hawaiian plants, nearshore ocean resources. Our mission is to
perpetuate traditional ahupuaa management of the Muolea ahupuaa and to restore and maintain
Muolea's natural cultural, scenic, historic, and marine resources for the benefit, education,
enjoyment of our community and future generations.
We basically care for 70 acres of public coastal land — land belongs to the County. We do have,
you know, we've done all of the bullet points in the agreement. We've got the, the liability
insurance. We've collectively put in, you know, over the past five years, more than 5,000 hours
of man hours...work on the land and in different programs. Like, we've worked with the Hana
Youth Center doing workshops on opihi and limu. We've planted limu, we've conducted opihi
surveys, reef surveys, and fish surveys with the Nature Conservancy. And we've also sponsored
for two years now the Hana Limu Festival which is an annual educational event. So, you know,
we're, we're committed because that's our icebox, that's where we came from, and hopefully,
we can get your support in this.
And before I knock off, I just want to say I support all of our Hana nonprofits, too. It's like
without them, this town cannot operate. Without MEO, there's a lot of people that would not
make it to the other side for doctor appointments and everything — so Hana Youth Center, Hale
Hulu Mamo, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Ohana Makamae. Aloha.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
MS. KALAOLA: Hana Film Festival.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Joe Modica, followed by Gabinele [sic] McMillen Kealoha.
MR. MODICA: I want to thank you all for coming out and being here. I represent...I'm here to, to
support Ohana Makamae because they umbrella a lot of different programs and one of them is
the Hale Kuokoa, clean and sober living and drug and alcohol treatment program, which I am a
client. I'm on my last leg of the program and it's a fantastic program that the staff is
outstanding. You know, they had a...they had a problem here recently and a few people got laid
off and they didn't even miss a beat. These are really caring people. They didn't miss a beat.
They kept on with the program. They kept doing their job, you know, and that showed me that
they're a caring bunch of people and this is a caring community. You can see by the turn out,
you know.
If it wasn't for this program here, the clean and sober living and stuff. I wouldn't have known
where to go, you know. There's people in Hana that do have the same kind of problem I had and
I...and I will always be an alcoholic and an addict and everything, but I have...but I'm in
recovery. And so there's, there's other people that have this problem and stuff and if they have
to go all the way to Kahului, like people have testified and gas is outrageous and stuff, and a lot
of people...this is a tight community. They don't want to be away from their families. They
don't want to have to go to the Aloha House or something like that. So if this program can stay
open with your support of Ohana Makamae, it's fantastic. Then people here can come to this
program and they don't have to leave Hana and they can still be in touch...in close touch with
their families.
And it has...and we have a cultural-based part of it, too, that's really great, you know. So I
would...I would continue to ask you for your support of Ohana Makamae, and you know, Hale
Kuokoa. It saved my life. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Okay. Gabinele [sic] McMillen Kealoha, followed by Ken Martinez Burgmaier.
MS. KEALOHA: Aloha. Okay, I'm here to speak for the MEO shuttle, the Hana Shuttle, which is not
just an essential service for everyday people, but especially senior citizens like myself. I'm
disabled and I would have...it's a lifeline. I would have no way to go to get quality healthcare or
to do grocery shopping here in Hana if it wasn't for the MEO. So I hope that you will always
fund that program. It is very, very important. It's a lifeline for many people.
Also, I'd like to speak, you know, support the Senior Center and there is one issue that I would
like to bring to everyone's attention which is the Styrofoam usage for one-time use which goes
into the Hana Landfill. That's something that really hurts...it worries me because this stuff

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

never breaks down and I hope somebody looks into it and that we use biodegradable materials
here in Hana because of the limited space. And that's all I have to say and thank you very much.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. The next testifier, Members, is Ken Martinez Burgmaier. Once Mr. Burgmaier completes
his testimony, the Chair is going to call for a recess. Mr. Burgmaier.
MR. BURGMAIER: Aloha kakou.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MR. BURGMAIER: And aloha, Council Members, and thank you guys for all coming out to our
community out here in Hana. And welcome aboard to you new Members, too.
First off, I want to say for nine years we've had our Maui Festival — Hana, Molokai, and Lanai
Film Festival that's been going. We started out here. A dream of me and Uncle Boy's. It's a
celebration of Hawaiian music, arts, culture, and film, and it's free for all families, for our
tourist, and just for everyone.
Since we found out like four days ago we've had over...first off, I want to say please support
every organization in Hana. They all deserve it. This is a real special place and before I get cut
off because I got...in the last four days since we found out that the Mayor cut our funding
through Ohana Makamae for our Film Fest, I probably had...we've had about nearly three...over
300 e-mails, phone calls, letters. So I know I can't read all of it in that time, but I'm just gonna
go through a few. But we've had tremendous press on this event, from even coverage at CNN,
Honolulu Star Advertiser, Maui News, every publication throughout, throughout the whole State
and to the mainland. LA Times even.
This is something I just want to just kind of show...a lot of you guys have never even been to our
Film Festival. Let me just read this. This is from a journalist in The Maui News, Kehaulani who
wrote, who came this year for the first time. We are on...we made the front page of the Current
Scene and even the front page of The Maui News. The East Maui scene is set. Well known
musicians get the crowd moving, clapping, swaying, laughing. Entertainment is enhanced by the
natural surroundings of the Hana Bay. Green from native, native foliage, grays from the gritty
sand, and deep blues from the Pacific. Community members mingle, catching up after a
work...a week of work. Then just as quickly as the action started, the audience go silent, then
the movies begin. The MauiFEST Hawaii Hana Film Festival crowd seems captivated by the
screens, the stage, musicians, the filmmakers. Behind one of the only free of events of its kind in
the State of Hawaii. In its eighth year, the Fest is packed with nearly 2,000 people. The tent in
Hana Bay last weekend with scores gathering to appreciate local films such as Hana Surf Girls,
Stones, I Scream, Massacre at Kaupoa Beach, Hana Remembers Her Sons and music featuring
New Orleans' Coco Robicheaux, Hubie Vigruex, Calvin Hoe, Benny Uyetake, CJ Boom
Helekahi, and Brother Noland.
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Erin Lindbergh of Kipahule...Kipahulu said, this unique event in Hana where it draws the
community together and tourist for a night of entertainment.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BURGMAIER: I thought it was great. She said the film selection was amazing, the music was
wonderful. It's one big night on the town for us. It was awesome, she said. It was good that the
community can come here and see the shows and share this with our tourist.
And there's more, you'll get a lot more. Here's just one quick thing from Barry Chang, our
Hana Canoe Club, which I've been a member for years. Please support MauiFEST Hawaii
Hana, Molokai, and Lanai...Lahaina... Lanai Film Festivals. They're a true blessing for all the
families and for all our visitors of Maui. For nine years, our Hana Canoe Club has been involved
on some level with MauiFEST Hawaii and we've had the opportunity raising funding for food
booths to purchase two brand new canoes for our Hana Canoe Club. They are preserving our
Hawaiian culture with aloha through all their events. And that's Barry Chang. And I've got a
whole bunch of other letters. Sorry, I get so emotional, you know, this is...we all knew Uncle
Boy Kanae, and you know, -MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. BURGMAIER: --he was my brother, and we're going to keep this going no matter what. And
hopefully, we'll find the funding somehow, if you guys can look deep in your hearts and just
keep this going. It is a free event so, you know, please kind of support it and please support
Ohana Makamae, the Senior Center, the Youth Center, and Rick's, everybody in Hana. We
all...it's just all so special here and we all need it. It's always a battle it seems like. This came
from left side, really knocked us out like four days ago. So if you guys can really just look in
your hearts. We did pass out a lot of...some press and things to look through it and do your best.
I'm sorry I kind of get emotional, but it's a real thing. It really touches our hearts. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Chair is going to call for a ten-minute recess so the Committee can stretch their legs and
do whatever they need to do. So we'll reconvene the meeting at 7:30. This meeting is in recess.
. . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

7:20 p.m.

RECONVENE: 7:30 p.m.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. The next testifier is Milton-Gerard Oliveira, followed by John Villiarimo.
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MR. OLIVEIRA: Aloha, County Council Members. Thank you for coming out to Hana and my name
is Milton Oliveira. I'm a Case Manager/House Manager at the Sober Living House in Hana and
I work for Ohana Makamae and support them. And I want to thank you for your guys past
support and continued support I ask for. The Sober Living House is here for our Hana people,
and you know, right now, you know, we get some people in there, but you know, we really
wanted to be in effect for the Hana people. And right now we just, you know, we three years
old. Like Sheila said, we just made our three years tomorrow.
And you know, we have some clients...we have some clients, but just the, the problem is is the
location and what you call, not having enough clients to come to the place. But right now we get
three clients so it's going there and our max is five so I hope to get the rooms filled, you know. I
mean I get two more on the list to come in and with that, you know, as long as we're open we
can be there for people who need help in the substance abuse area, or trying to get clean, coming
out of programs from in jail, or whatever, you know. They can come to the Sober Living, and
you know, it's a six month program we run with the IOP treatment... substance abuse treatment.
And I just ask for you guys continued support for our Sober Living, for the Keiki Makamae
Program that we trying to get back, and substance abuse. And then like my wife, Ramona, said,
she works at the school, so she works with the young kids, you know, if you can get 'em at a
younger age before the problem gets worse, you know, it's best to do it that time, you know.
Helping the kids while they're still in school is a major thing for drug treatment I think, you
know, instead of waiting 'till later. But you know, everybody needs help so we're there for the
substance abuse for the older, middle-aged, and whatnot, and whoever needs it. But I know you
guys, you know, the funding is kinda hard with all this stuff going on and I thank you guys for
you guys continued support, yeah. And also ask for the rest of the Hana — Kahanu Gardens, Hale
Hulu Mamo, the Paani Mai Park, the Hana Youth Center, the Hale Pomaikai, Ma Ka Hana Ka
Ike, the MEO, and Hana Film Fest, if that's possible, just continue your support I ask for. And I
thank you guys again for coming all the way out to Hana.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. John Villiarimo, followed by Keoki Kalani.
MR. VILLIARIMO: Aloha mai kakou. My name is John Villiarimo and I'm the Executive Assistant of
Hana Youth Center. This year we celebrate our 25 th anniversary and we wouldn't be able to
celebrate this success without the continued support that we've received over the years. As
always, Hana has a unique way of stretching that dollar through collaborations with other
agencies, which I believe creates a much better program for our community. We do a number of
family strengthening programs such as - Movie in the Park" with Hale Hulu Mamo and Ohana
Makamae.
MEO has supported us through transportation of our members from the school to our center.
More recently, we've created collaborations with Digital Bus and the Alakaina Foundation by
starting a kupuna noeau program where our youth are able to interview and capture our kupuna's
insight through video media.
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Hana Youth Center has made their space available to Hawaii Tech Academy, an alternate to the
traditional schooling here in Hana. We continue to work with Kapahu Living Farm, Kahanu
Gardens, Hana Canoe Club, and Hana Cultural Center in creating programs that teaches our keiki
about our culture and the importance of it. We also support Na Mamo 0 Muolea, Hana Arts, and
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike because we've once had or will be doing more programs with them.
Mahalo for your ongoing support of our agency, as well as all those that we work with.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Keoki Kalani, followed by Jasmine Oliveira.
MR. KALANI: Aloha and good evening. Aloha, Hana.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MR. KALANI: My name is Keoki Kalani and I'm the Executive Director of Hana Youth Center.
Thank you very much for being here this evening.
A quick story on miscommunication. At the last meeting held here, I think it was the
Department's meeting, it was a County meeting, and I mentioned a need for better visual impact
on existing speed bumps located near the Center and the basketball courts because they looked
just like the crosswalks which are just a couple feet away. Their purpose was being defeated
with vehicles unfamiliar with the area speeding right through. Shortly thereafter, the road was
repainted. Workers came all the way from Kahului, special, but the effort was poho. Because
the same existing stripes were just repainted. It still looks like crosswalks and the cars still speed
through. And I ask that the next time repainting is scheduled, whoever is in charge, please
consider an improved, different pattern. You can probably use the same pattern when expanding
the Paani Mai Park and Skate Park that will be created hopefully.
Even down Lower Nahiku where the Aunties were talking about. I understand that the funding
for Hana Film Fest has been eliminated and I ask that you, if can, please reconsider. Hana Film
Festival has not only given diverse, cultural exposure by way of film and music to our
community, it also shared what our community was all about to the world by videos seen on
television, internet, and heard on public radio. Hana Film Festival provided a group of
organizations the opportunity to work together and fundraise as well, and Hana Youth Center
appreciated that.
I also wanted to thank you for funding...for the funding that is directed towards youth
programming. Hana Youth Center is one of a few that is consistently providing for our youth
year round. We have currently 166 members and we employ four — two full-time and two
part-time, and we have five consistent volunteers. And we sincerely do appreciate this privilege.
The Aunties were mentioning about the cost of gas and I so wanted to talk about that — 5.74 for
regular. I bring this out because this is an example because it takes effort to deal with the higher

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2011

expenses to operate here in our isolated community. But we make do and we have been
fortunate to survive. However, there are other nonprofits not doing so well -MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. KALANI: --and we are all here this evening. Yet, after witnessing the challenges that are faced
around the world, we--that's all of us-- are so fortunate for what we have. For the organizations
like us who all because we work together in this small community, we ask that when you're
finalizing the budget appropriated for Hana if can, can, no can, no can. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks again.
Jasmine Oliveira, followed by John Blumer-Buell.
MS. OLIVEIRA: Aloha. Welcome to Hana. My name is Jasmine Oliveira, Program Manager for Keiki
Makamae, one of the programs that Ohana Makamae offers assisting pregnant women, as well as
mothers with children three and younger. In December of 2010, Keiki Makamae Program shut
down due to lack of funding. Thanks to you guys, we are now able to resume and have that safe
place for mothers to share the challenges of life with one another and of raising their children the
best way that they can.
I thank you for your support and ask that you continue to support us all, especially in these
economical times and definite cutbacks that we are all facing. It's a new year, a new beginning.
Please, I ask to keep these valuable programs such as Hana Youth Center, Hana Canoe Club,
Hale Hulu Mamo, MEO, Hana Arts, Kapahu Living Farm, Kahanu Gardens, Paani Mai Skate
Park, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, and Ohana Makamae available to our up and coming future families.
It is important to our community and we do serve the families of Hana. Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. John Blumer-Buell, followed by Moke Bergau.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and Budget and Finance Committee Members.
Thanks for coming to Hana. I signed up for two things. One, my wife is Vice-President of the
Hana Arts. She asked me if I'd say something, but I did submit a dozen copies of their letter so I
really don't need to say much other than I think they're in touch with Bob Carroll and I've
suggested that Bob use Dawn Lono and the power of his office to get them back on track. I
mean they need regular guidance to get this happening so that's all for them.
The second thing that I signed up for personally is four pages with this attachment and you each
should have gotten a copy. I gave nine copies. And I attached a front page story from April 12,
1991 and the headline of Maui News was Major property-tax reform proposed". And I'm
giving you that 'cause I think it's really important to put this...really a very long-term process in
perspective. And so I'm really proposing some major property tax reform again. That we
take...it's been almost 20 years. Let's revisit that again. And in order to do that I've suggested a
number of things, establish a new sub-committee of the Budget and Finance Committee to study
-
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possible reforms of the current property tax system. The sub-committee on golf courses, which
Pat Kawano started, worked very effectively to work out those problems. We got golf course
ordinance in place.
I suggest under number two, a starting place and the reason for it... my suggestion of dedicating
$25 per tax map key to raise $1.5 million is a starting point just for discussion. Three, I'd like
you to change the name of the Circuit Breaker to something more easily understood by
taxpayers. And our friend, Bill Tavares, always tells you about that every year. I mean he
thinks...the people tell him they think the Circuit Breaker has something to do with their
electrical system in their house. Four, change the Circuit Breaker so that a taxpayer can request
property tax relief now rather than wait until next year which is the current requirement. A clear
emergency situation and need would be required. Some property owners are falling into
financial difficulties very quickly. For some, next year might be too late. And until we get some
good discussion and reform or at least good discussion of the tax situation, I'm asking you not to
decrease the homeowner's exemption. So the last thing I said to you at your...at your rates
deliberation last year is please don't reduce the homeowner's exemption.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Okay. I've got four pages. I just ask each of you to take the time to read
through it. I spent a lot of time going through the Budget. I'd like to just say that thank the
Mayor and you folks for supporting the Hana Community Association for the grant for the Hana
Community Dialysis program. The HCA has been overseeing that program as the fiduciary
agent. They're doing a good job and that program deserves some support. Na Mamo 0 Muolea,
which is number five, Maui County holds the deed to the property and yet the County has not yet
met its obligations under the agreement with the Trust for Public Lands. This is something I
think should be at least in the Budget Committee. I worked to help.. .
MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Okay. I'll stop. I worked for that to preserve Muolea Point for more than 35
years and there's a lot of to finish, Chair. There's a lot of things in here I question some of the
funding that you're asking for — I give the reasons for it. I ask for other priorities that have never
been fulfilled from the Hana Community Plan with justification. I ask you to please stop funding
County roads that we don't have...that the County has no authority for around here. And I'm
asking for serious audit and I'm accusing at least two departments of fraud and I hope somebody
really challenges me on that because I'll prove it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: This will...this could save the County millions of dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you and we got that public testimony that we can look at. Thank you,
John.
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MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yeah. I just ask you, please to just take the time to read it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: It's four pages plus and I know how busy you are. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any questions for John? Thank you, John. Moke Bergau,
followed by Vicki Sawyer.
MR. BERGAU: Aloha kakou, ohana.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MR. BERGAU: And mahalo, Council Members. My name is Moke Bergau and I'm on the board...I sit
on the...board member with Ohana Makamae. The reason why I really strongly support them is
that they have the resources. They have access to resources and also on programs to help
families, to help individuals, yeah. And I believe that with the help of the community, this
program is able to help transform persons, to build persons, rather than just to address its, its
symptoms, yeah. But I strongly support Hale Kuokoa because it has accommodations to grow
people, yeah.
And by the transition that Ohana Makamae has been going through these past several months
and I strongly, strongly like to express my mahalo to the personnel, the staff, that has held it
together regardless of its financial difficulties. You know, they have went and far beyond their
responsibilities and stayed on without any income for several months just to keep the doors open.
Now, I believe that again that it takes a strong...a strong mission statement and a core group to
keep it running. And also the other nonprofit organizations that helps support this community,
Hale Hulu Mamo and Hana Ka Like [sic] with also the Youth Center. You know, these are the
core groups that, that helps support the community.
Now, to be able to function, there is another issue that I'd like to address that has been...by
Mr. Blumer-Buell. You know, the tax reform. If it's not reformed to where individual families
can remain on their lands, what we're doing makes no difference. But the nonprofits here is
making no difference. So it all starts with, with a strong reform on the taxes so they'll be able to
stay and at least keep some of their money. You know, keep some of their funds to participate in
their own rescue. Other than that, it's just being strangled, you know.
And I want to thank you very much...oh, and the Dialysis Center, Hui Laulima, yeah. It has
potential to grow and I strongly support them because it addresses a very, very serious medical
issue. You know, to really enhance life in Hana 'cause that's the only one we have rather than
taking the two-hour drive to, you know, to save a life. But I thank you very much and I would
really appreciate if you would consider strongly supporting financially in all the nonprofits here
and also in other means. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Vicki
Sawyer, followed by Colette Davies.
MS. SAWYER: Aloha. Aloha to everyone as well. My name is Vicki Sawyer. I'm secretary on the
board for the Hana Canoe Club. My first official year of being secretary. I want to thank you all
for being here and for all the help that you give to our East Side as well. And all of us here are
not only asking for funds but we also support each other — all of these nonprofits. We are also a
501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. You probably already know. And so we all...we all support
each other for each other's events and everything. So when you help one group, you help
everyone basically. We're asking for your continued support of the Hana Canoe Club and our
efforts to perpetuate Hawaiian culture via Hawaiian outrigger canoe paddling. It's a healthy and
fun activity for age 10 years and older for those who want to participate. As most of you know,
we sponsor our keiki in partnership with others so they are able to participate in Maui regattas
and the Maui Interscholastic League. We are also thankful for MEO for their help of
transporting our students. We also share our aloha with visitors as well. Our...everyone benefits
from these huge events that come to Hana because then we can all make money on them, right.
And our Sarah Joe Regatta is coming up May 14 th and 15 th and we appreciate your support of
that although we didn't get quite as much this year as we did last year. But we do all benefit
from these large events. It takes a huge effort to put it on and it's very costly to put on to get it
going so whatever you can come up with to help us that would be very great...we'd be very
grateful for.
We applied...our koa canoe needs work done on it so it can be ready for State's this year.
There's a little problem with it. In order for it to qualify to be paddled in State's, we did apply
for the Duke Kahanamoku grant...for Duke Kahanamoku grant and we were denied at this time.
So we still need funding to help repair the koa which is going to cost about $5,000 to do that,
aside from all of you know, keeping up our regular canoes, our fleet of six canoes and other
equipment. But I know we're running late but I'd really appreciate your consideration for our
club and thank you for...all for making the long journey out here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Colette Davies, followed by Clifford Hashimoto.
MS. DAVIES: Aloha, Council Members. I am an honored member of Hana Arts. I have the
opportunity to teach the children of Hana on Fridays, which is a furlough Friday in our school
system. The application of the arts in Hana is extremely needed. It's a creative avenue for our
keiki. It's an opportunity for them to explore who they are, which is an important facet to their
existence here. We believe strongly that the Hana Arts makes a profound and long lasting
impact on people's lives. That the creative process involved in the making of art is healing and
life enhancing. We develop and produce innovative programs using creative arts as a vehicle to
open young minds and hearts to the immensity of life's possibilities.
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I grew up in a community where the arts were easily accessible. Through instruction I have
learned to play various instruments. I feel comfortable performing, public speaking, and writing
creatively. These are the same opportunities that the keiki for Hana should be allowed to
participate in and that can be made more possible by your continued support.
I'll close with a quote from our President Obama, Time and again the tools of change and of
progress of revolution, they're not just pick axes and hammers and screens and software, but
they've also been brushes and pens and cameras and guitars." Thank you.
-

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Clifford
Hashimoto, followed by Tony Angelini.
MR. HASHIMOTO: Thank you, Chair and Members for this opportunity. I come before you to offer
my voice to all the other voices that have come here to ask for your consideration for supporting
our community of Hana. You know, it goes without saying that if we did not have nonprofits in
Hana, we'd be in big trouble because these are the only services that we actually get here
because we have other...few services other than that in Hana itself. The State provides very
little out here in a way some of the services that are provided by the nonprofits. So I'm asking
for your consideration to support our nonprofits here so we can continue to provide the needed
services to our community.
You know, there, there are a lot of...I know there are a lot of support here for many, many
different activities that we have in the community. Some of these activities are simply exercise
programs and that's fine. I suppose that is great, but in hard times like this, I think the services
that are provided directly to those in need such as some of our adults...seniors, I think that this is
perhaps even more important. So I, I support that and, and I ask your consideration for that.
I also want to thank you, Members, for your consideration on my behalf this past Friday. Thank
you very much. I look forward to that opportunity to serve Maui County. Thank you very much
for being here and thank you for...you know, I just want to make a point here. This is the largest
room of testifiers I've ever sat in, in a room to testify. Such an active group in Hana. I'm
amazed because this is one of the few times that I've ever done this in Hana and I always find it
amazing that we have so many people here to testify. I think that's wonderful and I'm really
proud of being part of Hana. By the way, I was born and raised here in Hana. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Tony Angelini, followed by Erick Nelson.
MR. ANGELINI: Good evening and thank you all for being here. I'm representing myself, but I'm also
a board member of our Dialysis Center and I want to express my gratitude for your continuous
support by making us a line item on your Budget. And thank you for that, for supporting the
dream of our President, Lehua Cosma, and being the first of our kind in the nation for this little
town of Hana — pretty big stuff So thank you all for supporting us. Thank you, Bob and Bill
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Medeiros as well for all that he did for us. And we continue to serve the community in the best
we can. I won't venture to say anything about the rest of my brothers and sisters here because
they said it a lot better than I could. But when something happens to one of us, it happens to all
of us. So with that in mind I just want you all to remember that when you look over our Budget.
Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Erick Nelson, followed by Milaneta Hanchett-Ching.
MR. NELSON: Howzit. Aloha. My name is Erick Nelson. I'm here on behalf of my aunty, Naomi
Kuailani, who no could be here tonight due to some prior arrangements. Okay.
To whom it may concern. I'm writing this letter in support of Rick Rutiz's awesome program,
Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike enriching lives by building homes for people in need —
kupunas and classrooms for kids, just a few projects that they have done throughout the
community. Then she starts off by saying, my story begins in the very early morning of
September 25, 2010 when a large eucalyptus branch fell and wrecked my home. Asleep in the
home was my husband, Earl and I. Thankfully, we were not injured. That early morning with
the help of family and friends, stressed and tired, I didn't know what to do.
We were homeless for two days so I called a cousin Senator, J. Kalani English. Kalani called
Red Cross and Rick Rutiz. The Red Cross came and had condemned our home and placed us in
a temporary home for two days. With all this going on, my husband, Earl, has gotten very ill and
was in and out of the hospital. My mind was not at ease. Rick kept in contact with us on a daily
basis expressing a vision he had.
My husband is a person that would do anything for anyone and not accept anything in return. He
trusts Rick Rutiz and Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike kids to make him a new home. How excited! And
then on December 11, 2010, my husband had passed away. On December 9, 2010, he left the
hospital and returned home. Not into his home, but a temporary home that was given to them to
stay in as long as they needed. On December 11... oh, December 9 was the first day he could see
his house ever. Not wanting to leave, he just couldn't believe that somebody that helped so
much people had somebody helping him. And last, but not least, she says on behalf of her and
her husband, she would like to thank Rick Rutiz and the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike kids for making
their dream come true. If it wasn't for this program, I would still be homeless and with no
husband. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Milaneta Hanchett-Ching, followed by Chad Evan Kirkwood.
MS. HANCHETT-CHING: Good evening. My name is Milaneta Hanchett-Ching. I'm speaking in
favor of Hale Hulu Mamo. I'm a lifetime resident of Hana — my parents, my grandparents, my
great grandparents and beyond. Unfortunately, my family...members of my family have become
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afflicted with Alzheimer's disease in their later years so if I lose my train of thought, you might
understand.
My grandmother had Alzheimer's disease. I wish we had had Hale Hulu Mamo when she was
alive. It was very costly to find people to care for her. She needed constant care at home. The
family would pop in and out and often she was alone and we always felt guilty about that.
My mother now has Alzheimer's and we're so fortunate to have Hale Hulu Mamo. She's been
going there for a couple of years. When she first started they had many seniors there and they
had programs where they would dance. My mother loves to dance. And unfortunately, her
partners have passed on, but they still have songs and singing, and she can...though she doesn't
remember much, she loves to sing and she remembers the words of the songs. They provide a
very safe haven for her. They care for her. The people that work there are very friendly and
loving towards her, and we're very grateful because before she went there, I had to take her to
work with me. My husband and I still work. We're self-employed so I could take her, but she
was very unhappy going to my office and sitting there and waiting on me. So I'm glad she has
Hale Hulu Mamo to go to and I hope that if I need it one day, they will still be there. I ask that
you continue to support them and keep them going in Hana. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Chad Evans [sic] Kirkwood, followed by Dee Krause.
MR. KIRKWOOD: Aloha, everybody. My name is Frog and I'm a professional skateboarder from
Orange County in California. A friend of mine brought some property out here a few years back
and I came to visit. I heard they were trying to get a skate park and so now I've been on a
mission for the last three years. Not only am I head of the committee, but I'm also on the Board
of Directors for the Friends of Hana Keiki, which we just finally got our 501(c)(3) approved and
we got a bank account.
I've been skateboarding for 24 years. I took second in the World Cup in 2000 at the LA County
Fair plus I've been teaching kids for almost 18 years, and I work at a camp in Pennsylvania for
the last seven years where I'm working with about 300 kids on a daily basis. So basically, I
came out here, started teaching the keiki. I have 40 students all the way from Lower Nahiku to
Puuiki. And I'm certified instructor so I can teach people how to teach as well. And basically,
the reason why I came tonight is because there's been so much progress. Last year, I met with
Bill Medeiros and Pat Matsui, and you know, we got the plans, we got the design.
So basically, first of all, I was wondering if... am I allowed to ask you guys questions? No?
Okay. So, just so you know, we have somebody that is willing to do...I want to know when we
can...first of all, I want to know if...just hear my statement is, if the land transfer really was
approved. Because I have somebody that's willing to do some kokua tractor work if the fuel was
provided and I actually have the fuel to provide for them. So I want to know if we can get on the
land and start clearing that and I'm kind of curious about the Budget and whether or not we get
our $100,000 back from the consulting fees for Lahaina's skate park.
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Basically, I want to let you guys know that I know it's...you guys probably think it's a really
dangerous sport but I mean this skate park can provide jobs for the keiki. They literally can
either become a film or a photographer or they can, you know, get involved in editing or design,
or they can be a professional skateboarder like their coach, Frog. So I want to let you know that
the liability has been lowered because of the fact that I've been working with these kids for the
last three years. And...I don't know, I'm just really excited. I can't believe it's been approved,
and you know, I look at the design all the time and I've made accounts with people, you know, in
the Hamptons in New York, and we actually have...there's some people that are willing to help
out. And I don't know if I can find this out, but I was just curious, you know, like what the
Budget is for the skate park. And that's it. Thank you. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. By the way, Kirk...oh. Chad, maybe you can talk to Mr. Pat Matsui who is the Deputy
Parks Director later on regarding the skate park. Dee Krause, followed by Rebekah Soteros
Kuby.
MS. KRAUSE: Aloha mai kakou.
AUDIENCE: Aloha.
MS. KRAUSE: ... .poke in Hawaiian facing the audience). . . you guys gotta look at my back. And
just thank akua for bringing you guys all here tonight. My name is Dee Krause. I'm a Hana
resident, born and raised and lived here all my life. I'm married and my husband and I have five
children and two grandchildren. I'm in support of all the Hana programs because my family has
benefited from these programs one way or another. Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike has provided a learning
environment for three of my sons who are unable to be here so I speak on their behalf as well.
My family lives off the grid and my sons have learned to and installed solar power to my home,
and last year, an outdoor solar hot water shower — just to show how talented our kids are, you
know. My sons are currently in college and I have stressed the importance of education to them
to go out and learn, but I also believe that it's even a greater importance what knowledge they
take with them because it gives them self-confidence and pride.
I have a nine year old son and he's the youngest and I'm in hopes for him to be part of Ma Ka
Hana Ka Ike. My nine year old is also part of the Hana Youth Center and Hana Youth Center
has provided a positive after school environment for him to learn responsibly how to do his
homework and to be respectful to others.
Hale Hulu Mamo has also provided care for my kupuna and resources for their families and
caregivers. And Ohana Makamae has done a tremendous job in educating our community as
well as our kids in school about drug abuse. And all of these programs focus on our Hawaiian
values, laulima — many hands working together; kokua aku kokua mai — giving help and
receiving help; kuleana — responsibility; and hoihi — respect. Just to mention a few because this
list goes on.
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I'm thankful for all your support to my community throughout all these years and I humbly ask
for your continued support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for this testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Rebekah Soteros Kuby, followed by Hilary Harts.
MS. KUBY: Aloha. Thank you all for being here. My name is Rebekah. I'm a Hana resident and I
have been working as a community volunteer working to take care of this land in a myriad of
ways over the last six years. I am one other voice of support of all of these amazing programs
that we have here in Hana from the Hana Arts, the MEO, the Hana Film Festival, the Sober
Living House, the Senior Center, the Hana Youth Center, the Dialysis Center, and the Hana
Canoe Club. I think it's so clear to see how all of these programs work together supporting the
whole, nourishing this entire family. I think that if any of you had children that lived in Hana,
you'd want these programs to be available. You would want these programs to be available for
your elders, for your grandparents, for your parents, so that they would have access to these
incredible programs while living all the way in this remote part of the island.
There's one other program I just wanted to mention which is a program that is very small, but I
think touches everyone without them even realizing it and it's a program that I'm thankful you
have supported — the Community Work Day. The CWD program. It has been responsible for
removing over 950 appliances, 175,000 pounds of scrap metal, and 1,200 vehicle batteries from
Hana. This cleanup is so important for Hana residents because we are so remote. These
organized pickup dates and cleanups are absolutely vital for our community. Since the CWD
recycling events have been happening in Hana, there's been a huge decrease in all of these items
being dumped on the Hana Highway in general. Cleaning up and recycling these dump sites not
only discourages others from dumping on these unspoiled lands, but it creates organized pickup
and dropoff locations where people finally learn how to properly get rid of the appliances — the
metal, the batteries, and these other items free of cost, which is the most important thing.
We are really grateful for the CWD for the assistance also with the briefing [sic] up from hauling
out the large nets from the shoreline. The last marine debris cleanup we had over 1,000
volunteers that had signed up through the whole progress...the process, and 3,000 pounds of
marine debris and litter were cleaned up from the shorelines of Hana. So on behalf of this entire
community, on behalf of the sea life, on behalf of the aina, I humbly thank you all for your
support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Hilary Harts, followed by Ward Mardfin.
MS. HARTS: Good evening, Council Members, and thank you again for being here. I know we're
getting late so I'll cut really short. I'm a board member on Na Mamo 0 Muolea and just a
reminder about the lease situation there. And you've heard extensively the need and the
intertwinings of our community — how we embrace each other, support each other, and love each
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other. And thank you for all your help in bringing these services and continuing to bring them
from the youth to the seniors, the dialysis, all our needs, and the skateboard park — all of it,
extensively. Thank you so very much and have a very safe drive home tonight. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Ward Mardfin, followed by Marvia [sic] Hanchett-Ching.
MR. MARDFIN: Aloha, Council Members...new Council Members, especially, welcome to Hana. Old
Council...former...long-time Council Members, thank you for coming again. I'm here speaking
mostly for the Hana Cultural Center. I'm the treasurer for that organization. We've received
support from the Council...County in the past. We hope to get funds in the future. I invite you
on August 14 if you want to come out for our Hana Cultural Center Hoolaulea.
I also want to speak about several other organizations. This is a very...as you've heard this is a
very small community. We're involved in lots of things. There are great programs. The Hana
Youth Center, Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Hana Arts, all involve some of the younger people.
Although Hana Arts and "Little Women" had an old guy who played Mr. Lawrence, but it's
mostly for the youth. As you get into older people, there's Ohana Makamae and the...there's
another one that hasn't been mentioned tonight — Hui Malama Learning Center. It's not located
here. It's located on the other side. I'm the GED teacher for Hana. I'm their one employee out
here. Two hours...1 work for two hours a week. But in seven years I've gotten 38 students to
get their degree and so even though it hasn't been mentioned by other people here, I'd urge you
to continue to support them.
As we get older, there are other kinds of organizations like Hale Hulu Mamo and Ohana
Makamae. Hale Hulu Mamo is good to me 'cause they have a program in tai chi, which I take,
and it keeps me a little bit looser than I might be otherwise. They talked about Na Mamo 0
Muolea. And it hasn't been mentioned much tonight but the invasive species projects keep the
environment good for us and we really appreciate everything that you've done. And again, the
Senior Club Hana Lani that deserves your support. So I just want to thank you all for coming. I
hope you have a nice trip back and thank you for the support for this community. We
really...we work for it, we work together. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? So Ward, one question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ward. Thanks. So do you do an outreach GED teaching here in
Hana -MR. MARDFIN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --on Hui Malama's behalf?
MR. MARDFIN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. MARDFIN: We work on Thursdays at the library — Hana Public Library from 5:00 to 7:00 p.m.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Thank you.
MR. MARDFIN: Can...let me do one more thing. I'm holding this because I wanted to refer to the CIP
and there were at least two things in the Hana CIP I want to...I hope you will support. One is
Paani Mai Park — that's where the skateboard will be. And the other is a very small thing — the
Hana Landfill. There's money in there requested for the groundwater monitoring and I pushed
this on the Maui Planning Commission because they thought the water was flowing in one
direction and had a well before the water went under the landfill and two after. But then
they...recent studies have shown that the water's going in a different direction and the extra
groundwater well is needed to see whether really nasty things are going out into the ocean. So I
urge you to support those two CIP projects. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ward. Members, the last testifier this evening is Marvia [sic]
Hanchett-Ching and if there's anyone that want to provide public testimony if you could sign up
with Clarita right over here so we can get your name. Thank you.
MR. HANCHETT-CHING: Hi. I'm going to speak on the elderly care services that we have here. We
cannot really speak exclusively on the services that the County provide for the elderly care here,
but we also must include the other agencies that help us here — Hui No Ke Ola Pono, Hana
Medical Center, and last but not least, the Hana Fire Department. Yeah, I have used their
services in the past in caring for my mother-in-law and without their help, we could not provide
the quality care that we need here, especially up there at Hale Hulu Mamo.
In the mornings when we take her up there, you know, she's very, very sluggish, down in her
spirits, and so forth, trying to start the day off. But in the afternoon when we pick her up she's
very vibrant and alive. So the activities that they provide up there really is encouraging to help
her cope with her daily regiments. So it's something that I would like to see you folks continue,
but of course now already reading the newspapers and so forth, we see all of these headlines
about shortfalls and revenues and so forth. And it's inevitable that everybody's gonna have to
cutback somehow. What I thinking we should be...should be done here is that maybe they
should have a coordinated effort in trying to figure out how to integrate all of these services that
we have here in continuing to provide for these services that are much needed, especially in
elderly care. I don't know what the short comes [sic] going to be... short, shortfalls gonna be in
funding for these programs, but a well-coordinated and concerted effort should be made in
providing these services. I'm not an expert in providing elderly care, but it sure is helpful having
Hale Hulu Mamo up there and taking care of my mother-in-law.
There's another thing that I would like to talk about and this is one that really angers me. It has
to do with these foreclosures, mortgages, and of course, mortgage derivatives that's been hitting
this County here. I got involved with several of these looking at these from the outside. I'm not
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directly involved with trying to help these people getting out of their dilemmas in trying to meet
their house payments. But the County here has a program where they have come in and
condemned some of these properties and have the individual property owners continue to live in
their homes. I can only see that this program is gonna have to be expanded 'cause
homeownership here in the islands is one of the things that can stabilize your property taxes. I
don't know who is paying the property taxes on these foreclosures. I assume it's the mortgage
companies and so forth. But you leave the people that are in these homes or who have these
mortgages out in the wind and they get foreclosed on, where do they go?
And of course, a good example, when some of these properties are foreclosed, they sit there for
the longest time and nobody's in there living there and the property just deteriorates. I hoping
that you would reconsider or come up with a... some kind of a strategy in trying to meet this
homeowner's needs, especially for those that really need it.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. HANCHETT-CHING: I don't how...what the financial impact is going to be on some of these
mortgage companies and so forth, but I'm sure there's going to be a lot of battling going on
because all they want is their money and they could care less as to what happens to the individual
mortgagees. So anyway it's something you guys should continue and expand, if possible. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MR. HANCHETT-CHING: Oh, Bob Carroll, if you want to find out more about this, I'll talk to you
about what's happening here and some places with these mortgages.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HANCHETT-CHING: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the last testifier this evening is Dawn Lono.
MS. LONO: Good evening and it's wonderful to see all of our Budget and Finance Committee here this
year. Really amazing! Thank you so much for everyone showing up. In support of, of course,
all of the nonprofits. But a couple of things that haven't been mentioned is our Hana Community
Center. That's where...across from the ballpark where the Hana Youth Center, Hale Hulu
Mamo, Hana Council Office, the Hana Cafeteria — that building is in great need of just
maintenance before we get to the repair stage. And if it goes much farther without getting
painted on the exterior and getting termite or ant treated--there's droppings everywhere, they're
just eating through the wood--we're gonna be replacing buildings instead of just doing some
general maintenance that needs to be done. So I'd like to encourage some funding for Parks and
Recreation for that, as well as our sprinkler system that we've been trying to get in there for
-39-
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eight, ten years, something like that. If we lose these buildings, it will take millions of dollars to
replace them. So they tried to put fire extinguishers at each door and they got vandalized and
stolen, and you know, it just didn't, didn't work. So I'd like to support the sprinkler system for
the Hana Community Center and I think it's proposed for this building as well, but I'm not sure.
The Nahiku situation — the road and the water pipeline breaks and it's just amazing. I went down
there. I saw the situation for myself. It's a real problem and we need to fix that waterline
permanently because it breaks and they fix it, and it breaks and they fix it, and the road is tore up
and it's just a horrible situation...that and the guardrails at the end of the road. I don't know how
much you know about that, but that's a pretty important situation that will create liability for the
County if it isn't taken care of.
The Maui Film Festival, of course, you've heard about. And one question that came up for me
today as I was watching the hearings earlier is about vehicles for the County. I understand that
we have one vehicle for every three County employees and before any decisions are made on
vehicles, it would be great to see a complete inventory of all the vehicles the County has, what
state they're in, if they need to be replaced or how long before they need to be replaced, and who
and how they are used. And I don't understand how we can purchase any more vehicles until we
know where we are. It just seems like a huge waste of money. So I wanted to support real deep
research on that situation and to have complete information before we purchase any more
vehicles.
And recycling — can't say more about that. Thank you for the lady who stood up and talked
about that. Hana, you know, it ends up on the side of the road along the way and because we've
had these programs for the last few years, it has cured that problem pretty much a 100 percent.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. LONO: So thank you so much for everything. It's wonderful to see you all here. Mahalo and
aloha. Good evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Dawn? Seeing none, thank you
again for being here. Dawn was the last person to sign up for public testimony.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, I just want to say thank you to the Hana community for coming
out this evening and provide...providing your public testimony. You know, when we came here
last year, you know, tonight we had 41 public...people providing testimony. Last year, was
close to 70. So, you know, I'm so happy that all of you came out tonight to provide your
testimony in the support of the nonprofit organization as well as other things. So, Members,
tomorrow eve...not tomorrow, but tomorrow we go to Kihei and on Wednesday we'll be flying
to Molokai for public testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the Budget and Finance Committee meeting here at Helene Hall in Hana is
now adjourned. ... (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 8:27 p.m.
APPROVED:

/

II EPH PO TANILLA, Chair
udget and Finance Committee
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